

AWARDS & HONOURS COMMITTEE

Monday, December 5, 2016

Minutes of the AWARDS & HONOURS COMMITTEE, held in OL 340, Thompson Rivers University, Kamloops, B.C., commencing at 11:00.

HEADIN	NG	ITEM	/ DISCUSSION	ACTION
ATTEND	ANCE			
Present:	,		Gordon Down (Chair), Mike Finch, Jordan Del Giudice, Way don Rudolph, Christopher Seguin	ne
Regrets:	Sanchit Bansa	l, Tom	Dickinson, Karthik Kanchumarthy	
Guests:				
CALL TO ORDER		The Chair called the meeting to order at 11:07 AM.		
ADOPTION OF AGENDA		The ag	renda was adopted as distributed.	
ADOPTION OF MINUTES		The minutes of 2 SEPTEMBER 2016 were adopted as distributed.		
	SS ARISING 1INUTES	i.	Determination of "insufficient pool", "highest level of academic achievement", and for the Gov General Silver medal "highest academic standing". Gordon reviewed the initial assessment and proposal submitted to Institutional Planning & Effectiveness (IPE). Once IPE has provided a detailed response and analysis, he will bring back a formal proposal to the committee with one or more proposed policy solutions.	
			It was raised that the committee had previously discussed creating a formal recognition which could be placed on the transcript for medalist runners-up (as the GPA difference between 1 st /2 nd /3 rd place is most often not material). Student Awards will draft a proposed award	Student Awards

THOMPSON RIVERS UNIVERSITY Meeting of the Senate Awards & Honours Committee

Monday, Dec 5, 2016

	Monday, Dec 5, 2010	Page 2 of 2
HEADING	ITEM / DISCUSSION	ACTION
	name & letter, review with the Registrar, and submit to Christopher to present to the Provost. Student Awards, as workload allows, will also complete a review of best practices around the placement of major	Student Awards
	scholarships & awards on the transcript, and will bring a report & recommendation to the committee.	
NEW BUSINESS	<u>Policy ED 9-1 Proposed Revisions</u> The committee reviewed the proposed ED 9-1 amendments distributed with the agenda. In Reg II.1.a., "With supporting rationale," was inserted, and "minor" was changed to "minimal". In the asterisk sentence, "must" was removed. Gordon withdrew the proposed changes to Reg. II.3.a. pending further input from IPE.	
	On motion duly made and adopted, it was RESOLVED that the proposed amendments to Policy ED 9-1 Reg.I.2., II.1.a., II.4.c&e, and II.5.h. be endorsed and forwarded to Senate for approval. (JL/JH)]	
	Selecting A Chair The committee elected Gordon Down as Chair for 2016/17, with the proviso that he would not be asked to sit on the Honorary Doctorate or Professor Emeritus/Emerita sub-committees or be involved with those selection processes.	
NEXT MEETING	TBA – Feb 8 or 9. Also, May 15, 2017 @ 10:00 AM in OL 340	
ADJOURNMENT	The meeting adjourned at 12:28.	



ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS

POLICY NUMBER
APPROVALDATE
PREVIOUS AMENDMENT
REVIEW DATE
AUTHORITY
PRIMARYCONTACT

ED 9-1 MARCH 23, 2015 DECEMBER 19, 2011 MARCH 23, 2020 SENATE STUDENT AWARDS & FINANCIAL SUPPORT

POLICY

Thompson Rivers University (TRU) is committed to recognizing the outstanding achievement of its students through the provision of medals, prizes, scholarships, and awards.

Medals are awarded for excellent performance in a program of study.

Prizes are monetary or non-monetary awards that recognize outstanding performance in a course or program of study.

Scholarships are monetary awards based on high scholastic achievement and, unless otherwise specified, are to be used for further study at TRU.

Awards are monetary recognition of accomplishment or affiliation in a particular field. Financial need is not a factor.

REGULATIONS

I. <u>MEDALS</u>

- 1. The Student Awards & Financial Support Office will obtain from the Office of the Registrar and submit to the Dean of each TRU school or faculty the best candidate based on the criteria set forth herein. With the Dean's approval, the name, along with supporting documentation, will be presented to the Awards & Honours Committee for review and approval. The names of the medal recipients will be forwarded to the Chair of Senate or designate for final approval.
- 2. <u>For undergraduate medals, c</u>Consideration will be given only to students who are eligible to convocate at the June or prior October convocation as per Policy ED 17-0. <u>For graduate</u> medals, consideration will be given only to students who have fulfilled all of their degree requirements since the previous medal adjudication, as determined by the Graduate <u>Studies Committee</u>.

- Page 2 of 5
- 3. The name of any medal issued by TRU to a graduating student will be placed on the student's transcript.
- 4. Medals will be awarded at the June Convocation.
- 5. A medal may not be awarded for a program if its students do not qualify under this policy, or if there are considered to be an insufficient pool of graduates in a degree program in a given year.
- 6. No name may be brought forward for medal consideration for any reason subsequent to the relevant meeting of the Awards & Honours committee.

II. MEDAL SELECTION

1. TRU Baccalaureate Medals

a. One medal will be awarded in each TRU baccalaureate degree program to the eligible graduating student who achieves the highest grade point average over the final 60 credits of the degree program*. The relevant dean may weigh the rigour of each degree against minimal differences in the medal finalists' GPAs, and recommend to the Awards & Honours Committee which candidate is deemed to have attained the highest level of academic excellence in the adjudication period. In cases of multiple degrees being concurrently awarded, the relevant dean may also request that the medal GPA be composed only of credits being used toward the degree in question.

*as per Policy ED 16-0, baccalaureate degree programs must require a minimum of 120 credits

- b. Assessment will be based on the most recent 60 credits completed prior to the granting of the degree. These credits must be completed within the student's final eight semesters (equates to 32 months of study).
- c. If the semesters included in order to obtain 60 credits result in a total of more than 60 credits, only the highest-graded credits from the earliest required semester will be assessed, using upper level credits first.
- d. The minimum grade point average for medal consideration will be 3.50 over the assessment period.
- e. Tie-breaking will be conducted by eliminating the lowest-graded equivalent number of lower level credits until the medal winner emerges. If a tie still exists, this process will be used with the upper-level credits.
- f. Consideration will be given only to students who have enrolled in and completed at least 24 graded TRU credits.

2. Governor General's Academic Medal (Gold)

- a. The medal is awarded annually to the student who is considered to have achieved the highest academic accomplishment upon graduation from a master's degree.
- b. The Graduate Studies Committee will seek one nomination from each master's degree program and, based solely upon the student's cumulative GPA and the merits of their thesis or final project work, recommend a medalist to the Awards & Honours Committee.
- c. The minimum grade point average for medal consideration will be 3.50 over the assessment period, based on a minimum of 15 graded credits, enrolled in and completed through TRU.

3. Governor General's Academic Medal (Silver)

- a. The medal is awarded annually in accordance with Regulation II.1.
- b. The winner of the Governor General's Medal will normally receive the TRU medal from his/her faculty. However, upon the recommendation of the appropriate Dean, the TRU medal may go to the second place student from the same degree program.

4. Governor General's Academic Medal (Collegiate Bronze)

- a. The medal is awarded annually to the student who achieves the highest overall average upon graduation from a diploma-level, post-secondary program of a minimum of two years full-time duration.
- b. The minimum grade point average for medal consideration will be 3.50 over the assessment period, based on a minimum of 15 graded credits, enrolled in and completed through TRU.
- c. If the student has more than the requisite credits, the highest graded credits required to graduate from the program will be assessed.
- d.c. Tie-breaking will be conducted by eliminating the lowest-graded equivalent number of credits until the medal winner emerges.

e.<u>d.</u> The Chair of each school or department will identify two candidates who best meet the criteria.

5. Lieutenant-Governor's Medal

a. The medal is awarded annually to a top-ranking student in a Vocational or Career/Technical program of less than two years' duration who has participated actively in university and/or community affairs.

- b. The minimum program length for consideration will be four months.
- c. Consideration will be given only to students who have maintained a minimum of 80% average of a full program load over each semester of the assessment period.
- d. The minimum grade point average for medal consideration will be 3.50 over the assessment period for students on the Letter Grading System and Dean's List standing for students on the Competency Based Grading System.
- e. The Student Awards & Financial Support Office will seek nominations from TRU students, faculty members, or staff.
- f. The Student Awards & Financial Support Office will advise students of their nomination for the medal and request biographical information.
- g. The Student Awards & Financial Support Office will forward the names of nominees, their transcripts and biographical information to the Awards & Honours Committee.

g.h.The medal will not be awarded if the candidate does not graduate in the calendar year in which they were selected.

6. This policy does not govern medals awarded by the Law Society of British Columbia to Juris Doctor students in the Faculty of Law.

III. <u>PRIZES</u>

Prizes are awarded upon the recommendation of faculty, schools or divisions and do not require an application.

IV. SCHOLARSHIPS

- 1. Unless otherwise specified, scholarships are tenable only at TRU.
- 2. The minimum standard for an award designated as a scholarship will require the student to:
 - a. have completed 80% of a full program load (60% for students with a recognized permanent disability which prevents them from studying at an 80% course load) at TRU in the qualifying period with a minimum of a 3.50 grade point average in each period (with the exception of TRU Entrance Scholarships, per ED 9-0).
 - b. maintain enrollment in 80% of a full program load (60% for students with a recognized permanent disability which prevents them from studying at an 80%

course load) during the period in which the scholarship is issued.

- 3. Scholarships may be awarded upon the recommendation of a specific division, school or department, or by the Student Awards & Financial Support Office.
- 4. Students entering TRU directly from secondary school and wishing to be considered for entrance scholarships require at least an 80% graduating average.
- 5. Students entering TRU directly from another post-secondary educational institution and wishing to be considered for scholarships will be assessed in the same manner as TRU students.

V. AWARDS

- 1. Unless an award specifies otherwise, applicants must possess a minimum 2.00 Undergraduate Cumulative GPA and have attained in their most recent semester of full-time study a minimum 2.00 Undergraduate GPA, or satisfactory standing in a trades or vocational program.
- 2. Unless an award specifies otherwise, applicants must be enrolled in at least nine undergraduate credits in the semester of application, or be enrolled full-time in an undergraduate trades or vocation program. Students approved to study at a reduced course load by StudentAid BC or Disability Services must be enrolled in at least six undergraduate credits in the semester of application.

VI. CANCELLATION & RETRACTION

Any medal, prize, scholarship, or award may be withheld, reduced, cancelled or retracted for any of the following reasons: lack of suitable candidates, failure of the candidate to meet the required terms and conditions, behaviour unbecoming of a recipient, withdrawal from the institution, reduced income on invested funds or withdrawal of the award by the donor.